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NATIVE AMERICANS
IN THE PLAINFIELD AREA

The Lenni-Lenape tribe is considered to be among the most ancient of the
Northeastern Nations. Their tribal history goes back over 10,000 years. The name
“Lenni-Lenape” means “Original People!” Several Lenni-Lenape trails ran through Plainfield.
The main path ran along Front Street,
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Another path was along Woodland

Avenue. It was the path the Lenni-Lenape
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took to get to the shore, where they found
shellfish and seafood. A third trail ran
through what is now the Watchung Circle
down Park Avenue to Arlington Avenue,
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near the site of the Drake House, along
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the Green Brook. Burial grounds were also
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found in the Green Brook area.
Indian Remains — Near Plainfield



SETTLERS COME TO PLAINFIELD

Many of Plainfield’s early settlers came from Europe or New England. There were eight
Scottish farmers who had large farms along the Green Brook.

In the 1700s, Plainfield was called Milltown, for there was a big mill on the south side
of the Green Brook near Somerset Street. Plainfield was also called Pinch Gut because
the town has a long, skinny shape, pinched in the middle. Plainfield was a part of Scotch
Plains and all mail was delivered to Scotch Plains by stage coach and then on to Plainfield.
In those times there was only a general store and an Indian trading post on Somerset
Street for the local settlers to buy supplies.

The Drake House,
and how it grew.
Drawn by

Frederic C. Detwiller
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THE REVOLUTIONARY WAR

In 1776-77, colonial  soldiers were
stationed in Plainfield, and General George
Washington is believed to have stayed at the
home of the Drake family on Front Street.
This house is now The Drake
House Museum. A famous
battle was fought in the
Plainfield area in June,
1777. It is called The

Battle of the Short Hills.

The British were going
from New York to attack
Philadelphia, the nation's
capital at that time. They planned
to go through Plainfield to fight George
Washington and his troops. American colonial
soldiers fought them along what is now known
as Woodland Avenue near Oak Tree Road. The
British soldiers were unable to get past the
American patriots, nor could they capture
General Washington at his lookout in the
Watchung Hills. The British were mad about

being stopped and so they burned houses and
looted all the way to Staten Island.

The site of the American colonial soldiers’
called the Blue Hills Fort and
Encampment, was located in what

camp,

is now Green Brook Park.

Many African American
families living in Plainfield
can trace their beginnings
back to the times when
Plainfield was farmland.
Slavery did exist in early
Plainfield, but by 1850, of the
African Americans living here (53
men and 54 women) there were no
male slaves and one female slave. A man
named Caesar, who had been born in Africa,
worked for the Drake family in the 1700s and
was freed by them in 1769. He helped the
American colonists fight the Battle of the
Short Hills by making sure they had
provisions.



FROM FARMS TO SHOPS

After the Revolutionary War, Plainfield was still mostly farms. One of those farms is

now Hillside Cemetery on Woodland Avenue. A man named Alexander Gilbert, who
served as Plainfield's mayor from 1891 until 1896, bought land that was very hilly.
People laughed at him and said "You cannot farm that land!", so he and his friends

decided to make it a cemetery.

Alexander Gilbert

In the summertime, Plainfield was
beautiful, but in spring and fall, the rains
turned the city into @ mudhole. Children
swept mud from crosswalks to earn money.

Plainfield began to change from a
farming community to a city. In 1808 the first
hat shop was built on Front Street near Grant
Avenue, and soon Plainfield was well-known
for hat-making. In 1837, there were fifteen
hat shops in Plainfield. At that time, there
were also six tailoring shops, six dry goods
shops, one grocery store, one tanyard, one
fire insurance company, one lawyer, three
doctors, and five churches.
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